
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Matthew Evans on 01432383690 or e-mail 
matthew.evans@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 

Agenda 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 25 November 2025 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: Online meeting/Conference Room 1 - Herefordshire 
Council, Plough Lane Offices, Hereford, HR4 0LE 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Matthew Evans 

Tel: 01432383690 

Email: matthew.evans@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Licensing Sub-
Committee 
Membership  
  
 Councillor Polly Andrews (Chairperson) 
 Councillor Dave Davies  
 Councillor Peter Hamblin  

 
   

 
 



 
Herefordshire Council  25 NOVEMBER 2025 
 

 

Agenda  

 Pages 
PUBLIC INFORMATION 
 

 

THE NOLAN PRINCIPLES 
 

 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.   NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY) 
 

 

 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 
of a Member of the committee. 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive declarations of interest in respect of items on the agenda. 
 

 

4.   APPLICATION FOR A GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE IN RESPECT 
OF PUDLESTON COURT, PUDLESTON, LEOMINSTER, HR6 0QY - 
LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

11 - 62 

 To consider an application for a grant of a premises licence in respect 
Pudleston Court, Pudleston, Leominster, HR6 0QY under the Licensing Act 
2003. 
 

 





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

 Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

 Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

 Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

 Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

 Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

 Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

 Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

 Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

 Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

RECORDING OF THIS MEETING 
 

Please note that the council will be making a recording of this public meeting.  These 

recordings form part of the public record of the meeting and are made available for members 

of the public via the council’s website.  

 

To ensure that recording quality is maintained, could members and any attending members 

of the public speak as clearly as possible and keep background noise to a minimum while 

recording is in operation.  

 
Please also note that other attendees are permitted to film, photograph and record our public 

meetings provided that it does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 

 

If you do not wish to be filmed or photographed, please identify yourself so that anyone who 

intends to record the meeting can be made aware.   

5



 

Please ensure that your mobile phones and other devices are turned to silent during the 

meeting. 

The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 

6



Licensing Hearing Flowchart 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Introduction 

Discussion  

Report by council 

 Outline of application 

 Summary of issues  
 
 

Parties address committee using 
spokesman if necessary  

Applicant addresses committee 

Members of committee can ask 
questions 

Cross examination generally not 
permitted.  

All parties to have equal maximum 
length of time to speak.  

Note:  hearing may be adjourned or 
heard in parties’ absence. 

7





 

Marshall, Caroline (Democratic Services Officer) Page 1 17/11/25 
Version number 3 

The Seven Principles of Public Life  

(Nolan Principles) 

 

1. Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

2. Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to 
people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. 
They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material 
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve 
any interests and relationships. 

3. Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, 
using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

4. Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions 
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

5. Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent 
manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear 
and lawful reasons for so doing. 

6. Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 

7. Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They 
should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to 
challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

 

9





 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Senior LeadOfficer, 01432 261761, email: licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk 

OFFICIAL 

Application for a grant of a premises licence in respect of Pudleston 
Court, Pudleston, Leominster. HR6 0QY – Licensing Act 2003 
 

Meeting: Licensing Sub-Committee 

Meeting date: Tuesday 25 November 2025 at 10:00hrs 
 
Report by: Senior Licensing Technical Officer 
 

Classification 

Open 
 

Decision type 

 
This is not an executive decision 
 
Reason Key 

Wards affected 

Hampton 

Purpose 

 
To consider an application for a grant of a premises licence in respect Pudleston Court, Pudleston, 
Leominster. HR6 0QY under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Recommendation(s) 
That: 
The Sub-Committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in 
the overall interests of the local community. They should give appropriate weight to: 

a) The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives, 
b) The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties, 
c) The guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, and 

d) The Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2020 – 2025. 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003 

 

11

AGENDA ITEM 4



 

OFFICIAL 

Alternative options 

 
1. There are a number of options open to the sub-committee: 

a) Grant the licence subject to conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule 

accompanying the application and the mandatory conditions set out in the Licensing Act 

2003, 

  

b) Grant the licence subject to modified conditions to that of the operating schedule where the 

sub-committee considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and add 

mandatory conditions set out in the Licensing Act 2003, 

 

c) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 

application relates 

 
d) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premise supervisor (DPS), or 

 

e) To refuse the application  
 

Key considerations 

 
Licence Application   

 

2. The application for the grant of a premises licence has received relevant representations and is 

therefore brought before the sub-committee for determination. 

 
3. Herefordshire Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2020 to 2025 states “All representation must 

be ‘relevant’, for example they must be about the likely effect of the grant of the application”. This 

followed paragraph 8.57 in the s182 Guidance which uses the same wording. 

 
4. The details of the application are: 

Applicant Pudleston Court Limited 

Agent  Not applicable 

12



 

OFFICIAL 

Type of application: 

Grant 

 

Date received: 

3 October 2025 

28 day consultation 

started: 

4 October 2025 

 

28 Days consultation ended: 

 31 October 2025 

 
  Summary of Application 

 

5. The application (appendix 1) requests a new premises licence for the following licensable 

activities 

Live Music (Indoors/Outdoors), Recorded Music (Indoors/Outdoors, Sale/Supply of Alcohol 

(consumption on and off the premises)  

 

Monday – Saturday 10:00 – 24:00,  

Sunday 12:00 – 20:00 

 

Late Night Refreshment (Indoors/Outdoors) 

Monday – Saturday 23:00 – 24:00, 

 

NB: Under the Live Music Act 2012 (as amended), an alcohol licenced premises can 

have live and/or recorded music from 08:00 – 23:00 for up to 500 people, without the 

need for these activities to be on a premises licence 

 

Late Night Refreshment (sale/supply of hot food and/or hot drinks) is only applicable 

between Monday - Sunday 23:00 – 05:00 

  

Summary of Representations 

 

6. No representations were received from the responsible authorities. They were all satisfied that 

the conditions proposed by the applicant promoted the four (4) licensing objectives. 

7. Six (6) relevant representations have been received from members of the public, which the 

licensing authority have accepted as being relevant. The representations can be found at 

Appendix 2 and text highlighted in yellow on what was accepted as being relevant. 

8. Six (6) representations were received from members of the public that were rejected by the 

licensing authority as not being relevant.  Their representations mainly focussed on traffic issues, 

road infrastructure and music being detrimental to the wellbeing of wildlife. These were deemed 

not relevant (rejected) as they did not address at least one (1) of the four (4) licensing objectives 

and 

9. The Licensing Sub-Committee cannot consider traffic and parking issues, road 

infrastructure or wildlife issues in determining the application in accordance with the 

13



 

OFFICIAL 

Licensing Act 2003. All relevant representors have been advised of this on two (2) occasions 

when correspondence has been sent out by the Licensing Authority. 

10. On Monday 10 November, the Licensing Authority (on behalf of the applicant), emailed out a 

letter to all relevant representors highlighting what the application entailed and how it would be 

managed.  To date, the Licensing Authority has had no reply to that letter, from those who made 

relevant representation.  A copy of the letter can be found at Appendix 3. 

History 

11. Since December 2023, a premises licence has been held on Pudleston Estate for a premises 

known as The Gaggles.  The licence authorised Sale/Supply of Alcohol, Monday – Thursday 

09:00 – 17:00, Friday – Saturday 09:00 – 18:00. 

12. To date, the Licensing Authority has not received any complaints regarding this premises. 

13. The grant application before the licensing sub-committee has been requested to replace the 

premises licence at The Gaggles, to cover all seven (7) holiday lets and the estate office.  

Community impact 

 

14. Any decision may have an impact on the local community. 

 

Environmental Impact 

15. This report is in relation to a premises license under the Licensing Act 2003 and as such there 
are minimal environmental impacts for the council. 

Equality duty 

 

16. Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the ‘general duty’ on public authorities is set out as 
follows: 

 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to – 

 

a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by 
or under this Act; 

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it; 

c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it. 

 

17. There are no equality issues in relation to the content of this report. 

14



 

OFFICIAL 

18. This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and the residents 
from the local neighbourhood. Any of the steps outlined in section 1 of this report may have 
financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood and/or may have impact upon the 
day to day lives of residents living in close proximity to the premises. 

19. Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has the right to 
respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes business premises). 
This right may be interfered with by the council on a number of grounds including the protection 
of rights and freedoms of others. The First Protocol – Article 1 – also provides that every person 
is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his possessions and shall not be deprived of his 
possessions except in the public interest and conditions provided for by law.  Members must 
accordingly make a decision which is proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a 
balance between the rights of the applicant, residents and the community as a whole. 

Resource implications 

20. This report is in relation to a premises license under the Licensing Act 2003 and as such there 
are minimal resource implications for the council. 

 

Financial implications 
 

21. There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the council as licensing authority at this 

time. 

Legal implications 

22. As relevant representations have been received, the sub committee must determine the 
application under Section 3.5.7 (c) of the Herefordshire Council constitution. The 
representations must relate to the licensing objectives and the sub committee must determine 
the likely effect of the grant of the premises licences on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

23. The licensing authority must have regard to the promotion of the four licensing objectives 
namely; the prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; the prevention of public nuisance; 
and the protection of children from harm in exercising its functions under the Licensing Act 
2003. Further regard should be had to the statutory guidance under Section 182 of the Act and 
the Council’s own statement of licensing policy. The options available to the licensing authority 

are set out in section 1 of this report. 

24. The sub committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have appeared before 
the Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority. 

25. The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No: CO/5533/2006) 
at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative Court on 6 May 2008, 
[2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the Honourable Mrs Justice Black.  In 
this case it was summed up that: - 

26. A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 
section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do so but will need 
to give full reasons for their actions. 

15



 

OFFICIAL 

27. Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to a licence 
with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’ must be presented to 
support the reason for imposing these conditions. 

28. This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of Bristol 
Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, CO/6920/2008 High Court of Justice Queen's Bench 
Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC 625 (Admin) 2009 WL 
648859 in which it was said: 

‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and proportionate for 
the promotion for licensing objectives’.  

29. In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an 

enforceable condition. 

 

Right of Appeal 
 

30. Schedule 5, Part 1,  Section 1 of the Licensing Act 2003 gives a right of appeal which states: 

Rejection of applications relating to premises licences 

(1) Where a licensing authority- 

(a) Rejects an application for a premises licence under section 18, 

 

The applicant may appeal against the decision.  

 

Schedule 5, Part 1, Section 2 of the Licensing Act give a right of appeal which states: 
 

Decision to grant premises licence or impose conditions etc. 
 
  (1)  This paragraph applies where a licensing authority grants a premises licence 

under section 18. 
(2)  The holder of the licence may appeal against any decision— 

(a)  to impose conditions on the licence under subsection (2)(a) or (3)(b) of that 
section, or 

(b)  to take any step mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section (exclusion 
of licensable activity or refusal to specify person as premises supervisor). 

(3)  Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to the application 
desires to contend— 
(a)  that the licence ought not to have been granted, or 
(b)  that, on granting the licence, the licensing authority ought to have imposed 

different or additional conditions, or to have taken a step mentioned in 
subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section, he may appeal against the decision. 

(4)  In sub-paragraph (3) “relevant representations” has the meaning given in section 18(6).  
 
31. Appeals should be made to the Magistrates Court and must be made within 21 days beginning 

with the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision 
appealed against 

 

16



 

OFFICIAL 

Risk management 

 
32.  There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a right of 

appeal to the Magistrates Court within a period of 21 days of being notified of the decision in 
writing. 

Consultees 

 
33. All responsible authorities and members of the public living within Herefordshire.  

Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 – Application form 
Appendix 2 – Public representations 
Appendix 3 – Letter to representors from the applicant 
 

Background papers 

None Identified  

 

Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used in 
this report.  
 
DPS – Designated Premises Supervisor 

17





 

OFFICIAL 

 Application for a premises licence to be granted 

under the Licensing Act 2003 
 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are 

completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your 

answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary. 

 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

 

 

I/We PUDLESTON COURT LIMITED 

         (Insert name(s) of applicant)  

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises 

described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the 

relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Part 1 – Premises details 

  

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

 

Pudleston Court 

Pudleston 

Post town Leominster Postcode HR6 0QY 

 

Telephone number at premises (if any)   07821 106901 

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £0 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details 

 

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as        Please tick as appropriate 

 

a) an individual or individuals *  please complete section (A) 

b) a person other than an individual *   

 i as a limited company/limited liability 

partnership 

 please complete section (B) 

 ii as a partnership (other than limited 

liability) 

 please complete section (B) 

 iii as an unincorporated association or  please complete section (B) 

 iv other (for example a statutory corporation)  please complete section (B) 

19



 

OFFICIAL 

c) a recognised club  please complete section (B) 

d) a charity  please complete section (B) 

e) the proprietor of an educational establishment  please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body  please complete section (B) 

g) 

 

 

 

ga) 

 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the 

Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an 

independent hospital in Wales 

 

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of 

Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 

(within the meaning of that Part) in an 

independent hospital in England 

 

 

 

 

 

 

please complete section (B) 

 

 

 

please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in 

England and Wales 

 please complete section (B) 

 

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one 

box below):     

 

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the 

premises for licensable activities; or 
 

I am making the application pursuant to a   

 statutory function or  

 a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative  

 

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable) 

 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 
      

 

Surname 

 

First names 

 

Date of birth                      I am 18 years old or over  Please tick yes 

Nationality British   

Current residential 

address if different from 

premises address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 

(optional) 
 

 

 

 

 

20



 

OFFICIAL 

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable) 

 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title (for 

example, Rev) 
      

 

Surname 

      

First names 

      

Date of birth                                   I am 18 years old or 

over 
 Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current postal address 

if different from 

premises address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone number       

E-mail address 

(optional) 
      

 

 

 

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS 

 

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where appropriate please 

give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a 

body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned. 

 

Name 

PUDLESTON COURT LIMITED 

Address 

3 Gateway Mews 

Ringway 

Bounds Green 

London 

N11 2UT 

Registered number (where applicable) 

16012542 

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.) 

Private limited Company 

Telephone number (if any)  

 

E-mail address (optional) 

  

21



 

OFFICIAL 

 

Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start? 
DD MM YYYY 

A S A P     
 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 

when do you want it to end? 

DD MM YYYY 

        
 

 

 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 

 

 

 

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any 

one time, please state the number expected to attend. 
 

 

 

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 

 

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 

 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)         
Please tick all that 

apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)  

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)  

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  

(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 
 

 

   

22



 

OFFICIAL 

   

   

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)   

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)  

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

23



 

OFFICIAL 

A 

 

Plays  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of a play take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read 

guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri   Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of plays at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat   

            

Sun   

            

 

24



 

OFFICIAL 

B 
 

Films  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the exhibition of films take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)  

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please 

read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur   

            

Fri   Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat   

            

Sun   

            

 

25



 

OFFICIAL 

C 
 

Indoor sporting events  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4) 

      

Day Start Finish 

Mon             

            

Tue             State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please 

read guidance note 5) 

                  

Wed             

            

Thur             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

26



 

OFFICIAL 

D 
 

Boxing or wrestling 

entertainments  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 

entertainment (please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

27



 

OFFICIAL 

E 
 

 

 

 

Live music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of live music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10:00 24:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue 10:00 24:00 

            

Wed 10:00 24:00 State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 

(please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur 10:00 24:00 

            

Fri 10:00 24:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of live music at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

            

Sat 10:00 24:00 

            

Sun 12:00 20:00 

            

 

28



 

OFFICIAL 

F 
 

Recorded music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10:00 24:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue 10:00 24:00 

            

Wed 10:00 24:00 State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music 

(please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur 10:00 24:00 

            

Fri 10:00 24:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the playing of recorded music at different times to those 

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 

note 6) 

      

            

Sat 10:00 24:00 

            

Sun 12:00 20:00 

  

 

29



 

OFFICIAL 

G 
 

Performances of 

dance 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of dance take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 

(please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur   

            

Fri   Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat   

            

Sun   

            

 

30



 

OFFICIAL 

H 
 

Anything of a similar 

description to that 

falling within (e), (f) or 

(g) 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be 

providing 

      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or 

outdoors or both – please tick (please read 

guidance note 3)  

Indoors  

Mon             Outdoors  

            Both  

Tue             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Wed             

            

Thur   State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 

description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 

guidance note 5) 

      
            

Fri   

            

Sat 
  

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling 

within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      
            

Sun 
  

            

 

31



 

OFFICIAL 

  

I 
 

Late night 

refreshment 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the provision of late night refreshment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 

please tick (please read guidance note 3)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 23:00 24:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 

      
            

Tue 23:00 24:00 

            

Wed 23:00 24:00 State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 

refreshment (please read guidance note 5) 

                  

Thur 23:00 24:00 

            

Fri 23:00 24:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to 

those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 

guidance note 6) 

      

            

Sat 23:00 24:00 

            

Sun   

            

 

32



 

OFFICIAL 

J 
 

Supply of alcohol 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for 

consumption – please tick (please read 

guidance note 8)   

 

On the 

premises 
 

Off the 

premises 
 

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10:00 24:00 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please 

read guidance note 5) 

                  

Tue 10:00 24:00 

            

Wed 10:00 24:00 

            

Thur 10:00 24:00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

      

            

Fri 10:00 24:00 

            

Sat 10:00 24:00 

            

Sun 12:00 20:00 

            

 

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as 

designated premises supervisor   (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the 

checklist at the end of the form): 

 

Name Rhiannon Baines 

 

Date of birth       

Address 

 

 

 

 

Postcode HR6 8TA 

Personal licence number (if known) 

 

Issuing licensing authority (if known) 

Herefordshire Council 

 

 

33



 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

K 

 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 

matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 

children (please read guidance note 9). 

 

None 

 

L 

 

Hours premises are 

open to the public 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 7) 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5) 

      

Day Start Finish 

Mon 00:00 24:00 

            

Tue 00:00 24:00 

            

Wed 00:00 24:00 

            Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be 

open to the public at different times from those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 

 

We are open to guests booked by appointment from 16:00hrs on 

arrival day to 10:00hrs on departure day 

Thur 00:00 24:00 

            

Fri 00:00 24:00 

            

Sat 00:00 24:00 

            

Sun 00:00 24:00 

            

 

34



 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 

 

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10) 

 
The premises is open to guests booked by appointment 
 
 

 

 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

 
The Premises Licence Holder shall install and maintain a CCTV system at the premises 
giving coverage at all entry points and areas to which customers have access.  
The CCTV system shall provide clear images in all lighting conditions.  
The CCTV system shall continuously record whilst the premises are open for licensable 
activities and shall be capable of providing frontal identification of customers.  
All CCTV recordings shall be retained for a minimum of 31 days and shall be date and time 
stamped.  
A member of staff shall always be present on the premises whilst they are open who is 
capable of operating the CCTV system and able to facilitate immediate viewing of CCTV 
footage and should be made available for inspection upon the request by the Police or any 
an “authorised person” (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) 
In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS 
MUST report the failure to the Police on contact number '101'immediately. 
 
All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in responsible alcohol retailing to the 
minimum standard of BIIAB Level 1 or any equivalent training course within 1 month of 
commencing employment at the premises. Where there is existing staff, this training shall 
be completed within 3 months of the date that this condition first appears on the licence. No 
person shall be authorised to sell or supply alcohol until this training is completed. Refresher 
training will be conducted at 12 monthly intervals. Training records shall be kept on the 
premises and produced to the police or an “authorised person” (as defined by Section 13 of 
the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council 
on demand. 
 
An incident log must be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request 
to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police, 
which must record the following: 
 (a) all crimes reported to the venue 
 (b) all ejections of patrons 
 (c) any complaints received 
 (d) any incidents of disorder 
 (e) seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
 (f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment 
 (g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 
No open containers will be removed from the premises 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35



 

OFFICIAL 

c) Public safety 

 
First aid  
A First Aid Kit shall be kept fully stocked at the premises and kept behind the bar. Such kit 
shall contain:  
 
1 x Guidance Leaflet 
60 x Washproof Plasters  
6 x Eye Pads with Bandage  
8 x Triangular Bandages  
12 x Safety Pins 
16 x Assorted Sterile Dressings  
20 Moist Wipes 
3 Pairs Disposable Gloves 

 

 

d) The prevention of public nuisance 

 'Noise' from the premises must not be heard within any occupied permanent structure where 
people normally reside or sleep, when assessed with windows and doors closed. 'In this 
condition; 'Noise' -is defined as sound which is created by entertainment consisting of either 
vocal (recorded or live) or instrumental music (recorded or live) or a combination of both. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder or DPS must immediately comply with any request to adjust 
noise levels/ frequency spectra made by an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 
of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police 
 
No waste such as bottles or refuse shall be placed outside the premises between 23:00hrs 
hours and 08:00hrs 
 
Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less than 32 font bold) shall be displayed at all 
exits to the premises requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to 
leave the premises and the area quietly 
 
A contact telephone number will be publicised on the Premises website, so that local 
residents can report any noise issues directly to the Premises. All calls will be logged by 
time, location and contact number and an address will be requested and will include details 
of any remedial action taken. The log will be kept on site and be readily available at the 
request of an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the 
Police 
The contact telephone number will be operational throughout the hours of regulated 
entertainment 

 

 

e) The protection of children from harm 

The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 Policy. Such policy shall be written down and 
kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of an authorised person’ (as 
defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the police or an authorised Trading 
Standards Officer of Herefordshire Council. Prominent, clear and legible signage (in not less 
than 32 font bold) shall also be displayed at all entrances to the premises as well as at, at 
least one location behind any bar advertising the scheme operated.  
 
A written or electronic register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people 
who have been unable to provide required Identification to prove their age. Such records 
shall be kept for a period of 12 months and will be collected on a daily basis by the 
Designated Premises Supervisor and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as 
defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised Trading Standards Officer 
of Herefordshire Council on demand. 

36



 

OFFICIAL 

 
No adult entertainment or services or activities must take place at the premises (Adult 
Entertainment includes, but is not restricted to, such entertainment or services which would 
generally include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-table, or pole-dancing, performances 
involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or 
entertainment involving strong and offensive language). 

 

 

Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

 

 

 

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. 

 

 

 I have enclosed the plan of the premises.  

 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and 

others where applicable. 
 

 I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be 

designated premises supervisor, if applicable. 
 

 I understand that I must now advertise my application.  

 

 

 

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will 

be rejected. 

 

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not 

a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I 

have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United 

Kingdom (please read note 15). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A 

PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO 

BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF 

THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT 

LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE 

LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, 

ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE 

SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE 

KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE 

EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.  

 

 

Part 4 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 11) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance 

note 12).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.  

 

 

 

37



 

OFFICIAL 

Declaration 

• [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a 

partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I 

am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the 

entitlement to live and  work in the UK (or if I am subject to a 

condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on 

of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I 

cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance 

note 15).       

 

• The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK 

(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing 

work relating to a licesable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or 

her proof of  entitlement to work, if appropriate (please see note 15) 

    

 

Signature  

Date 02.10.2025 

Capacity Chief Operating Officer 

 

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other 

authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please 

state in what capacity. 

 

Signature  

Date       

Capacity       

 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated 

with this application (please read guidance note 14) 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Telephone number (if any)       

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 

      

 

 

Notes for Guidance 

 

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout 

and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where 

your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for 

consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will 

be and its proximity to the premises. 

38



 

Consent of individual to being specified as premises supervisor 
 
 
 
I Rhiannon Baines 
            [full name of prospective premises supervisor] 
 
 
of 

 [home address of prospective premises supervisor] 
 
hereby confirm that I give my consent to be specified as the designated premises 
supervisor in relation to the application for  

 [type of application] 
 
by 

[name of applicant] 
 
 
relating to a premises licence  

     [number of existing licence, if any] 
 
for  

[name and address of premises to which the application relates] 
 

 

 
 

Grant of a Premises Licence 

PUDLESTON COURT LIMITED 

TBC 

Pudleston Court 
Pudleston 
Leominster 
HR6 0QY 

39



2 

and any premises licence to be granted or varied in respect of this application made 
by  

 [name of applicant] 
 
concerning the supply of alcohol at 

 [name and address of premises to which application relates] 
 
I also confirm that I am entitled to work in the United Kingdom and am applying for, 
intend to apply for or currently hold a personal licence, details of which I set out 
below.  
 
Personal licence number  

[insert personal licence number, if any] 
 
Personal licence issuing authority 

[insert name and address and telephone number of personal licence issuing authority, if any] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed  
 
 
 
Name (please print)  
 
 
 
Date 

PUDLESTON COURT LIMITED 

Pudleston Court 
Pudleston 
Leominster 
HR6 0QY 

 

Herefordshire Council 

 

Rhiannon Baines 

02.10.2025 

40



41



licensable 
Activity

PUDLESTON COURT

Butlers Cottage

Gardeners Cottage

Adams Lodge

Eves Lodge

42

embowell
Oval

embowell_1
Line

embowell_2
Line

embowell_3
Line

embowell_4
Line

embowell_5
Line



Licensable Activity Area

43

embowell_6
Oval

embowell_7
Line



44



45





 

OFFICIAL 

 
From: Website <no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk>  
Sent: 27 October 2025 18:31 
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Online form received: Comment on licensing application 

 

Licensing - Comment on a licensing application FS760380561 

 

Contact details 

Name: 
 

Address:  
, Brockmanton,      

What is your interest in the premises you are making a representation about:  
Local resident 

Name and address of premises you are making representation about:  
Pudleston Court Ltd. 
Pudleston, 
Leominster. 
HR6 0QX 

 

Prevention of crime and disorder 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public safety 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
All roads leading to Pudleston Court are single track. When meeting oncoming vehicles 
one or the other has to reverse as there are no passing places. Speeding service delivery 
vehicles are getting ever more prevalent and there will be an obvious increase due to 
commercial activity of this nature. There has already been an increase in minor 
accidents. Additionally the access from the A44 to Pudleston (known locally as the 
Fairmile) is on a dangerous bend and would need redesigning with associated road 
works being a requirement.  
 
The road infrastructure in the surrounding area of Pudleston Court is already so poor that 

47



 

OFFICIAL 

the addition of the extra traffic which would be caused by the large events possible will 
further exacerbate this situation and create added dander fro the public. 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public nuisance 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
Several years ago a midsummer event was held by a previous owner of Pudleston Court. 
Loud music was played throughout the evening which resonated throughout the valley 
and at midnight the music was accompanied by a large firework display. Apart from the 
disruption to local residents, many of the horses and farming livestock in the local area 
were considerably distressed by both the music and the fireworks. We have therefore 
already experienced the disruption caused by loud music being played outside. The 
potential for this to be a frequent event would be unfair on both the local community and 
livestock, this is after all a farming community. 

Suggest any conditions: 
No outdoor music, definitely no fireworks, and indoor music to end at 10pm  
 
We understand that planning permission was granted for 50 events per annum. These 
should be restricted to indoor events only to prevent disruption to the local community.  

 

Protection of children from harm 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Supporting evidence 

What evidence do you have to support this information: 

 
 
 
From: Website <no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk>  
Sent: 29 October 2025 15:41 
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Online form received: Comment on licensing application 

 

48

mailto:no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
embowell_8
Highlight



 

OFFICIAL 

Licensing - Comment on a licensing application FS760895433 

 

Contact details 

Name: 
 

Address:  
 , Pudleston,      

What is your interest in the premises you are making a representation about:  
Local resident 

Name and address of premises you are making representation about:  
Pudleston Court Ltd, Pudleston Court, Pudleston, Leominster, Herefordshire HR6 0QY 

 

Prevention of crime and disorder 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
This is a very quiet neighbourhood, with the many of the residents being elderly. I am 
worried that a large number of people descending on the village and consuming alcohol 
until midnight Monday - Saturday and then returning home in the early hours, has the 
potential to cause crime and disorder if people have had too much alcohol. 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public safety 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
The location is not suitable for vast numbers of people arriving and departing, and could 
cause a public safety issue. Our roads are very narrow single track lanes with limited 
passing places, very bad potholes, and in some places the edges of roads have been 
worn away, and there are no footpaths.The volume of traffic is bad enough now, with 
people having to queue up to use passing places. We already have lots of large lorries, 
large tractors, parcel delivery vans and supermarket delivery trucks, Add a huge number 
of people going to Pudleston Court all at the same time to the mix and it could cause 
chaos. That's not even allowing for the horse riders and walkers that use the lanes.  

Suggest any conditions: 

 

49



 

OFFICIAL 

Public nuisance 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
This is a very quiet and peaceful neighbourhood, right out in the middle of the 
countryside. away from traffic and noise. People have moved here to get away from the 
traffic and noise of the towns. Many people who live here are elderly and have lived here 
for a long time. Noise carries in the countryside and I'm worried the outdoor noise and 
music, could become a public nuisance to local residents, especially as it's right next door 
to the village church.  

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Protection of children from harm 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Supporting evidence 

What evidence do you have to support this information: 

 

 

From: Website <no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk>  
Sent: 29 October 2025 20:12 
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Online form received: Comment on licensing application 

 

Licensing - Comment on a licensing application FS761086425 

 

Contact details 

Name: 
 

Address:  
, Pudleston,      

What is your interest in the premises you are making a representation about:  
Local resident 

50

mailto:no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk
embowell_9
Highlight



 

OFFICIAL 

Name and address of premises you are making representation about:  
Pudleston Court 
Pudleston  

 

Prevention of crime and disorder 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public safety 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
The lanes are narrow with little or no passing places and many people struggle to drive 
on them safely in the daylight, let alone various taxi companies/people attending events 
at Pudleston Court who have no knowledge of the area. There is also no lighting on the 
lanes (one of the reasons I have chosen to live here otherwise I would be in a town!)  

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public nuisance 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
My property is at the back drive to Pudleston Court where I do not wish for late night 
music/taxis/drivers/drunk noise and nuisance to be heard every night of the week! Whilst I 
appreciate the need for local business I have chosen to live where I do because it is a 
peaceful, quiet village. I do not want my evenings to be disturbed by the sound of loud 
music every night of the week. The owners of Pudleston Court don't even live in the 
country. I have horses in the adjoining paddock to Pudleston Court which again I do not 
wish to be upset by ongoing music and people leaving the property late at night.  

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Protection of children from harm 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

51

embowell_10
Highlight

embowell_11
Highlight



 

OFFICIAL 

Supporting evidence 

What evidence do you have to support this information: 
I have been a resident of Pudleston village since 2017 and very much hope the peace 
and quiet remains and that this licence isn't granted! Should you wish to discuss this any 
further please don't hesitate to contact me 

 

 

From: Website <no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk>  
Sent: 30 October 2025 20:18 
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Online form received: Comment on licensing application 

 

Licensing - Comment on a licensing application FS761385281 

 

Contact details 

Name: 
 

Address:  
 , Pudleston,      

What is your interest in the premises you are making a representation about:  
Local Resident 

Name and address of premises you are making representation about:  
Pudleston Court Limited 
Pudleston Court 
Pudleston 
Hereford 
HR6 0QY 

 

Prevention of crime and disorder 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

52

mailto:no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk


 

OFFICIAL 

Public safety 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
Traffic and Road Safety 
All surrounding roads are narrow, single-track rural lanes with limited passing places. 
Increased traffic and visitors leaving late at night raise further Public Safety and Public 
Nuisance concerns — headlights, voices, and vehicle noise would all impact the 
tranquility of this small community. 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public nuisance 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
I am writing to object to the premises licence application submitted by Pudleston Court 
Limited, Pudleston Court, Pudleston, Hereford HR6 0QY. 
The application seeks authorisation for: 
• Live Music (Indoors/Outdoors) 
• Recorded Music (Indoors/Outdoors) 
• Late Night Refreshment (Indoors/Outdoors) 
• Sale and Supply of Alcohol (on and off the premises) 
from Monday–Saturday 10:00–00:00 and Sunday 12:00–20:00. 
________________________________________ 
Grounds for Objection 
This objection is made under the Licensing Objective – Prevention of Public Nuisance. 
Our home lies approximately 650 metres from Pudleston Court, within a very quiet rural 
area characterised by open fields, minimal traffic, and virtually no background noise at 
night. The nearest property to the venue is only 300 metres away and houses livestock, 
which are particularly sensitive to noise. 
We are a family of four with two children. Our home is a traditional stone building with 
solid walls and no modern insulation. We both work full time, generally retire at 10 pm 
and rise at 6 am, meaning that sleep disturbance from late-night outdoor entertainment 
would have a direct and detrimental impact on our health and wellbeing. 
________________________________________ 
Character of the Area 
Pudleston is a small rural parish with a population of around 160 people. Dwellings are 
dispersed and connected by narrow single-track lanes. There are no constant sources of 
background noise. In this environment, even moderate sound levels travel a long 
distance. 
Within approximately 1 kilometre of Pudleston Court there are several dwellings scattered 
across open countryside, including those at roughly 300 m, 400 m, 500 m, and 650 m. 
Given the quiet landscape and minimal shielding, amplified outdoor music from the venue 
would be audible across much of this area. 
“In this rural location the ambient sound level at night is typically 20–30 dB(A) or less. 
Sound propagation modelling shows that even moderate levels (65–75 dB(A)) can be 
clearly perceptible at distances of 300–650 m under such conditions. Therefore, unless 
the outdoor source level were reduced below 55–60 dB(A), music would almost certainly 

53

embowell_12
Highlight

embowell_13
Highlight

embowell_14
Highlight



 

OFFICIAL 

be audible at the nearest dwelling (300 m) and perceptible at ours (650 m).” 
(References: WHO Environmental Noise Guidelines, 2018; DEFRA Noise Policy 
Statement for England, 2010; Institute of Acoustics – Good Practice Guide on the Control 
of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, 2015.) 
Given these acoustic realities, the applicant’s assurance that “no noise will be heard” 
from neighbouring properties is not credible. 
________________________________________ 
Livestock and Animal Welfare 
The nearest property, 300 m away, keeps livestock, and our own property houses horses. 
Sudden or sustained loud noise, particularly at night, can distress animals and create 
welfare or safety issues. This adds further reason for limiting outdoor music activity. 
______________________________________ 

Suggest any conditions: 
Given the above, I respectfully request that the Licensing Authority: 
1. Refuse the application for outdoor amplified music; or, if granted, impose strict 
conditions including: 
a. No amplified outdoor music after 21:00. 
b. Implementation of a Noise Management Plan agreed with Environmental Health. 
c. Maximum sound levels at source set to ensure inaudibility at the nearest residential 
properties. 
d. Limits on event frequency and duration. 
2. Require the applicant to submit a Noise Impact Assessment before any outdoor 
entertainment is approved. 

 

Protection of children from harm 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Supporting evidence 

What evidence do you have to support this information: 
In this rural location the ambient sound level at night is typically 20–30 dB(A) or less. 
Sound propagation modelling shows that even moderate levels (65–75 dB(A)) can be 
clearly perceptible at distances of 300–650 m under such conditions. Therefore, unless 
the outdoor source level were reduced below 55–60 dB(A), music would almost certainly 
be audible at the nearest dwelling (300 m) and perceptible at ours (650 m). 
(References: WHO Environmental Noise Guidelines, 2018; DEFRA Noise Policy 
Statement for England, 2010; Institute of Acoustics – Good Practice Guide on the Control 
of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, 2015.) 

  

54

embowell_15
Highlight



 

OFFICIAL 

From: Website <no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk>  
Sent: 28 October 2025 11:58 
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Online form received: Comment on licensing application 

  

Licensing - Comment on a licensing application FS760590692 

 

Contact details 

Name: 
 

Address:  
, Pudleston,      

What is your interest in the premises you are making a representation about:  
Local resident 

Name and address of premises you are making representation about:  
Pudleston Court Limited, Pudleston Court, Pudleston, Hereford HR6 0QY 

 

Prevention of crime and disorder 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public safety 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public nuisance 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
We are a small quiet and peaceful village and we don’t need another wedding venue in 
the area. There are already 2 locally - Bredenbury Court and Broadfield Court. There are 
also local pubs who sell alcohol every day and have good outdoor space in the summer. 
Finally our small lanes will not be able to cope with any more traffic - there is too much 
already. It is completely the wrong location for any sort of large venue - there are far more 
suitable places in other parts of the county. 

55

mailto:no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk


 

OFFICIAL 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Protection of children from harm 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Supporting evidence 

What evidence do you have to support this information: 
The increase of traffic recently has already impacted our crumbling roads. There are always 
complaints when any sort of noise is heard at night - even when it is a one off. Every night noise 
pollution is unacceptable. 

By noise pollution I mean loud music ringing round the village, people leaving the venue late and 
being noisy and excess traffic noise as well.  We live here because we like the peace and quiet. 

As mentioned previously, we already have two local wedding venues.  We really don’t need a 
third one. 

 
 

56

embowell_16
Highlight



 

OFFICIAL 

From: Website <no-reply@herefordshire.gov.uk>  
Sent: 31 October 2025 20:52 
To: Licensing <licensing@herefordshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Online form received: Comment on licensing application 

 

Licensing - Comment on a licensing application FS761668178 

 

Contact details 

Name: 
 

Address:  
, Pudleston,      

What is your interest in the premises you are making a representation about:  
Local Resident 

Name and address of premises you are making representation about:  
Pudleston Court Limited 
Pudleston Court 
Pudleston 
Hereford 
HR6 0QY 

 

Prevention of crime and disorder 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
Pudleston is a tiny peaceful hamlet without any crime, that I am aware of, since I moved 
here in April 2019. We dont want an influx of visitors from wherever coming in who 
potentially could commit crimes of all sorts from assault to robberies & theft, as well as be 
misbehaved due to alcohol or drug consumption. We all value our peace, quiet & safety 
here. All three access roads leading to this venue are single narrow little country lanes. It 
is not equipped for an influx of visitors in countless vehicles. There is no public transport 
here, so this will mean an influx of vehicles, with potential accidents & tiny single lane 
roads congested, never mind collisions with the numerous farm tractors who frequent 
these lanes, as we are a farming community, thus public safety here will be hugely at risk. 
It is a tiny hamlet & we would all be disturbed by the noise of raucous visitors as well as 
the noise that will be generated by the music, be it inside or outside. This will be 
unbearable & will no doubt impact our mental health & well-being here in Pudleston. I 
would recommend that you attend this venue to see the location for yourselves. This 
location is right next to our precious church, St Peter's. It will be a huge nuisance with 
church goers trying to park & gain access to the church for services, conflicting with 
visitors trying to access the music & alcohol immediately next door to our beautiful 
church. The noise of the music may drown our church services. We are already all 

57

embowell_17
Highlight

embowell_18
Highlight



 

OFFICIAL 

stressed with modern day life, so choose to leave in Pudleston in peace & quiet. We do 
not want the risks of crime, discorder, personal safety, noise & unruly behaviour to take 
over our little hamlet. Noise travels far here, as it is so quiet. The thought fills me with 
abject horror. Many thanks for considering my views.  

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public safety 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
Pudleston is a tiny peaceful hamlet without any crime, that I am aware of, since I moved 
here in April 2019. We dont want an influx of visitors from wherever coming in who 
potentially could commit crimes of all sorts from assault to robberies & theft, as well as be 
misbehaved due to alcohol or drug consumption. We all value our peace, quiet & safety 
here. All three access roads leading to this venue are single narrow little country lanes. It 
is not equipped for an influx of visitors in countless vehicles. There is no public transport 
here, so this will mean an influx of vehicles, with potential accidents & tiny single lane 
roads congested, never mind collisions with the numerous farm tractors who frequent 
these lanes, as we are a farming community, thus public safety here will be hugely at risk. 
It is a tiny hamlet & we would all be disturbed by the noise of raucous visitors as well as 
the noise that will be generated by the music, be it inside or outside. This will be 
unbearable & will no doubt impact our mental health & well-being here in Pudleston. I 
would recommend that you attend this venue to see the location for yourselves. This 
location is right next to our precious church, St Peter's. It will be a huge nuisance with 
church goers trying to park & gain access to the church for services, conflicting with 
visitors trying to access the music & alcohol immediately next door to our beautiful 
church. The noise of the music may drown our church services. We are already all 
stressed with modern day life, so choose to leave in Pudleston in peace & quiet. We do 
not want the risks of crime, discorder, personal safety, noise & unruly behaviour to take 
over our little hamlet. Noise travels far here, as it is so quiet. The thought fills me with 
abject horror. Many thanks for considering my views.  

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Public nuisance 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 
Pudleston is a tiny peaceful hamlet without any crime, that I am aware of, since I moved 
here in April 2019. We dont want an influx of visitors from wherever coming in who 
potentially could commit crimes of all sorts from assault to robberies & theft, as well as be 
misbehaved due to alcohol or drug consumption. We all value our peace, quiet & safety 
here. All three access roads leading to this venue are single narrow little country lanes. It 
is not equipped for an influx of visitors in countless vehicles. There is no public transport 
here, so this will mean an influx of vehicles, with potential accidents & tiny single lane 
roads congested, never mind collisions with the numerous farm tractors who frequent 

58



 

OFFICIAL 

these lanes, as we are a farming community, thus public safety here will be hugely at risk. 
It is a tiny hamlet & we would all be disturbed by the noise of raucous visitors as well as 
the noise that will be generated by the music, be it inside or outside. This will be 
unbearable & will no doubt impact our mental health & well-being here in Pudleston. I 
would recommend that you attend this venue to see the location for yourselves. This 
location is right next to our precious church, St Peter's. It will be a huge nuisance with 
church goers trying to park & gain access to the church for services, conflicting with 
visitors trying to access the music & alcohol immediately next door to our beautiful 
church. The noise of the music may drown our church services. We are already all 
stressed with modern day life, so choose to leave in Pudleston in peace & quiet. We do 
not want the risks of crime, discorder, personal safety, noise & unruly behaviour to take 
over our little hamlet. Noise travels far here, as it is so quiet. The thought fills me with 
abject horror. Many thanks for considering my views.  

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Protection of children from harm 

Give details of your objection or support for the application: 

Suggest any conditions: 

 

Supporting evidence 

What evidence do you have to support this information: 
I dont have any evidence but am sure the police have records of the lack of crime in 
Pudleston. Plus if you look on Google maps one can see how narrow the little single 
country lanes are here. One could also check the bus records to confirm there is no 
public transport here, so all visitors will be in cars or buses. There is no noise at all during 
the day or night - I cant evidence this as it's hard to record total silence (other than the 
odd owl calling at night). 

 

59





 

 

 

 

Dear Sir/Madam 

 

We would like to thank you for bringing your concerns to our attention during this 
consultation period.  Without your comments, we would not be able to address the 
community to explain our intentions and to reassure you about our respect for this 
beautiful area and its inhabitants. 

 

Regarding wedding functions at Pudleston Court - our intended events programme will 
be centred around experience events and country escapes for the maximum of 42 
guests who we might have onsite.  These activities will include crafting, cookery, 
calligraphy, painting, historical experiences and wellness escapes such as yoga, fitness 
and guided walks on the property.  We will also be offering seasonal events at Easter, 
Halloween and Christmas.  These will be a supplemental offering to our guests to 
enhance their experience of countryside life.  These will NOT be large scale events with 
attendance open to the public.   

 

In general, we intend our programme to be restful, relaxing and peaceful, which is why 
people want to come to this exceptional part of the country.   Ravers will not be 
welcome on our property and will have to go elsewhere.  Events such as wedding 
breakfasts, receptions, private celebrations will be a limited part of what we offer. 

 

Please let us reassure you that fireworks will most definitely NOT be held on our 
premises.  Their use is strictly and specifically forbidden.  We have our own livestock 
onsite and would never allow a fire risk to the Grade 2 listed main building or any of the 
rental cottages.   

 

Regarding the licensing for amplified music - as a commercial business, we need a 
license to play any copyrighted sound onsite.  For most of the time, this is likely to be 
calming soundscapes in our treatment rooms, background music for experience 
workshops, and guests playing their own music in the rental cottages.  We do not 
provide guests with any amplifying equipment to play music.  The rental cottages only 
contain televisions, and this sound will not travel to the surrounding area.  

 

61



 

 

As we have previously stated, celebration events will be a minor part of the offering at 
Pudleston Court, and amplified sound for these will be monitored in conjunction with 
environmental health and recorded within our noise management plan. 

 

Our wish and intention is to help our guests to enhance their holiday or the reason for 
using our accommodation.  Much of this will promote our community and show what 
our community and Herefordshire have to offer. 

 

As part of their stay, we offer guests a welcome hamper with local produce.  This will 
sometimes include alcohol from local suppliers, so we need to have a premises license 
and be a licensee. 

 

Since we offer the option to rent all the cottages and event space simultaneously so 
that families and groups can dine together, there might be a temporary bar in the events 
space, in place for the specific time and purpose only.  We are NOT opening as a public 
bar, public house or nightclub venue for our guests, nor will any part of the premises be 
open to the public. 

 

Finally, despite the road and traffic management not being relevant to this license, we 
would like to reassure you that, considering what has been explained above, you will 
note that, for the most part, the volume of traffic will remain at current levels.  Any 
increase that may occur in future due to small scale group or celebration bookings will 
be assessed, with the appropriate measures being implemented so that there is as little 
impact and disruption to the local roads as possible.  That is in our best interests, as 
well as yours. 

 

We sincerely hope that we have explained and clarified our plans and that you have 
been reassured about our intentions.  We very much want to retain the peace, quiet and 
calmness of this beautiful area, whilst sharing it with visitors. 

 

Kind regards, 

  

The owners and representative of Pudleston Court 

62


	Agenda
	 Public Information
	Licensing Hearing Flowchart

	 The Nolan Principles
	4 Application for a grant of a premises licence in respect of Pudleston Court, Pudleston, Leominster, HR6 0QY - Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3




